

White Paper

Real-time Collaboration with Lotus Sametime

January 2001

A Lotus Development Corporation White Paper

Copyright and Trademark Information

Disclaimer; No Warranty

THIS INFORMATION AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTATION (IN PRINTED OR ELECTRONIC FORM) ARE PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY. WHILE EFFORTS WERE MADE TO VERIFY THE COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF THIS INFORMATION, THIS INFORMATION AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTATION ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY WHATSOEVER AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED, LOTUS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE SAME. LOTUS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF, OR OTHERWISE RELATED TO, THIS INFORMATION OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENTATION. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS INFORMATION OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENTATION IS INTENDED TO, NOR SHALL HAVE THE EFFECT OF, CREATING ANY WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS FROM LOTUS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (OR ITS SUPPLIERS OR LICENSORS), OR ALTERING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE APPLICABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT GOVERNING THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE.

Under the copyright laws, neither this documentation nor the software may be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable form, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Lotus Development Corporation, except in the manner described in the documentation or the applicable licensing agreement governing the use of the software.

© Copyright 1998 - 2001 Lotus Development Corporation 55 Cambridge Parkway Cambridge, MA 02142

All Rights Reserved. Printed in the United States.

Trademarks

Domino, Notes, Sametime, and Sametime Connect are trademarks and Lotus, 1-2-3, Ami Pro, Freelance Graphics, Lotus Notes, LotusScript, Notes Mail, and Word Pro are registered trademarks of Lotus Development Corporation. IBM PC Camera, IBM PC Camera Pro Max, and UltraPort are trademarks and IBM is a registered trademark of International Business Machines Corporation. America Online, AOL, AOL Instant Messenger, and the Triangle Logo are registered service marks of America Online, Inc. Java and all Java-based trademarks and logos are trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the United States, other countries, or both. Latitude Communications, the Latitude logo, and MeetingPlace are trademarks of Latitude Communications, Inc. Microsoft, NetMeeting, Windows, Windows NT, and the Windows logo are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both. MMX is a trademark and Pentium is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both. InstallShield is a registered trademark and service mark of InstallShield Software Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Other product and company names mentioned herein may be the trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Contents 📑

Executive Summary 1
Real-time Collaboration with Lotus Sametime 3
Sametime Conferencing Services
Sametime Secure Instant Messaging Services
Sametime Integration Services
Sametime Features
Using Sametime with NetMeeting
Integrating Real-time and Asynchronous Collaboration
Sametime-Enabled Solutions 11
Help Desk 11
E-commerce
Project Management 11
Virtual Seminars 12
Conclusion

Executive Summary

In today's marketplace, the demands of globalization and e-business force nearly every company to face new challenges:

- Greater decentralization and a growing need to work effectively in distributed teams
- Semi-permeable organizational boundaries, with more information flowing to and from business partners and customers
- New customer expectations for service and responsiveness
- The need for "bricks and mortar" corporations to leverage corporate knowledge to their strategic advantage against Internet start-ups
- The never-ending drive to increase efficiency and reduce cycle times

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) is one example of a technology investment that can help a business confront many of these new challenges. And indeed, ERP integration has rapidly become a virtual prerequisite for organizational survival.

Another technology has recently matured that equals or surpasses ERP in the scope of its potential impact on business success. As with ERP, successful early adopters will achieve significant advantage while their competitors scramble to catch up. This technology is real-time collaboration.

Real-time collaborative capabilities include virtual conferencing, instant messaging, shared whiteboards, and the ability to categorize your coworkers' areas of expertise into manageable "buddy lists." These capabilities have long been available in various forms but have only recently entered mainstream corporations. Figure 1 illustrates that the rate of adoption of real-time collaboration has recently accelerated as more and more organizations report impressive returns on investment and real business benefits. According to Forrester Research analyst Ted Schadler, "[Real-time collaboration] is growing from consumer chat into an important new communications channel for business." (USA Today, 10/23/2000).





Real-time collaboration saves money, enhances communication, and creates tighter relationships with customers, partners, and suppliers Real-time collaboration refers to instantaneous, live communication between two or more people. When the two people are in different places, technological assistance (such as the telephone) is required for them to communicate. Figure 2 illustrates the relationship among familiar forms of collaboration.



Figure 2: Forms of collaboration across time and distance

The advantages of real-time collaborative technology can be summarized as:

- **Immediacy:** Real-time collaboration helps teams make decisions faster and find people and expertise faster.
- **Reach:** Real-time collaboration helps minimize the disadvantages of working in distributed teams by improving information and knowledge transfer.
- **Richness:** Real-time collaboration is a new form of communication that offers the natural flow of a telephone conversation with the added richness of live images and data.

Simply put, real-time collaboration provides a cost-effective way to initiate and sustain communication among employees, partners, customers, and suppliers. It helps distributed teams work more effectively and make better decisions. It reduces costs by cutting the need for travel and allowing immediate communication. Perhaps most importantly, it facilitates knowledge sharing, allowing organizations to leverage what their people know to create new knowledge and improve responsiveness, innovation, competency, and efficiency across departments and processes.

Electronic messaging technology, in the form of e-mail, groupware, document libraries, discussion databases, intranets, and the Web, has long been an indispensable tool for asynchronous collaboration in business. Yet until recently, the telephone has remained the only widely available tool for real-time collaboration. Now real-time electronic messaging technologies like secure instant messaging and data conferencing have emerged as mainstream business tools. Soon interactive customer service, virtual meetings, and instant messaging will be as much a part of our working lives as telephones and e-mail.

Real-time Collaboration with Lotus Sametime

Lotus Sametime is the first real-time collaboration product that offers a complete range of integrated, real-time services while meeting enterprise and e-business requirements for scalability, manageability, and security.

Sametime services fall into three areas:

- **Conferencing Services:** These services include a shared whiteboard and the ability to share programs and documents online. Sametime also offers a server-based Meeting Center where users can schedule online meetings in advance and store agendas and other meeting materials.
- Secure Instant Messaging Services: These services include awareness, instant messaging, and chat. A buddy list makes Sametime users aware of who is available (and who is online but unavailable) to receive an instant message or participate in a chat with one or more people.
- **Integration Services:** Sametime also provides a comprehensive Java-based API that enables customers to easily integrate real-time collaborative capabilities into other applications, such as e-commerce sites, help desks, and training/information delivery applications like Sales Force Automation.

Sametime Conferencing Services

Sametime Conferencing Services provide the ability to share *objects* (such as desktop applications, presentations, documents, and drawings) online. Users can schedule an online meeting in advance, or move directly from an instant message to a screen-sharing or whiteboard session such as the one shown in Figure 3.



Figure 3: Ad hoc online screen sharing

Collaborating in realtime will help you instantly and easily find the knowledge you need and can provide a forum to securely collaborate via the Web. Sametime allows any user to share any program from his or her desktop, such as word processors, spreadsheets, and project management software. Other participants are not required to have the same software in order to participate and see what's being shared. When appropriate, users can also pass control of the application back and forth as necessary; the initiator can reassert control at any time.

Sametime's shared whiteboard is the online equivalent of a typical whiteboard in an office or classroom. Users can draw on it, show presentations, and annotate documents on it. Sametime also converts popular file types into "pages" for convenient display during whiteboard sessions.

As noted above, Sametime fully supports both ad hoc and scheduled meetings. Online meetings can be anything from a quick "show me" session among two people, to team briefings on a new product, to a full-scale virtual seminar involving hundreds of participants across both the WAN and the Web. Meeting information is posted in a server-based Meeting Center, along with agendas and preparatory materials. Invitees can access these materials anytime before, during, or after the meeting. For maximum convenience and to eliminate barriers to off-site invitees, users can participate in online meetings and whiteboard sessions directly from Web browsers, without downloading and installing special software or plug-ins.

Users can also specify the type of meeting to help manage bandwidth. For example, a user can have a meeting that is designed to allow several people to collaborate on a specific application. Sametime also allows a user to set up meetings that are designed for one presenter and a large audience of observers, like an organizational or earnings announcement. The meeting moderator decides which services (chat, whiteboarding, audio/video, etc.) will be available to each participant. In this way the user easily customizes the meeting based on their goals and collaboration needs.

Figure 4 shows what an organization's Meeting Center might look like when accessed via a Web browser:

Cybermach Admin Console - Hicrosoft Internet Explorer				6	
Elle Edit View Go Favorites Help				1	
Back Forward Stop Refresh Home Search Fo	🖬 🎯 🂡	Fullscreen	Na Pin	EdR	
Address 😰 http://databean/IM5Conf.nst/webFrame/21F483C2F850188080	2566F80034D26B70penDoou	ment			
Links #215D InfoCentre 🕢 ISD News #21JSA Search #21 The Hub 🛛	White Pages				
		_			
CYPERMACH			Hama I	Lista	
CIBERMACH			Home	пер	
10000		Hele			
AGENUA		Help			
Monthly Management Meeting - 01/13/99					
Title	Presenter		Presenter 2		
1 Review minutes from previous meeti	Daise Clarks		Dates Complete Coult		
2 International Communication	Brian Clarke		Peter Campoell-Smith		
OUTCOME LIST Create Action	Create Agreemen	nt Help			
	Þ				
Monthly Management Meeting - 01/13/99					
Detail 1. Selevus mediating alan	Assigned to	Due by	Outcome		
1 Forew up marketing plan	macey Lord	02/08/99	Action		
		. I and because			
		Local Hisanel 20	NC .		

Figure 4: A Sametime Meeting Center

Sametime Secure Instant Messaging Services

Most real-time communication is unscheduled and has nothing to do with computer technology. For example, you hear the voice of a colleague outside your office door, and you step out to speak to her face-to-face. Online, real-time collaboration is also very convenient and most effective when it occurs spontaneously, just like the hallway encounter.

But like a face-to-face encounter, you need to be *aware* of the opportunity to interact. Sametime recognizes this fact and incorporates the ability to tell the server your availability. A user can tell the server whether they are online, away from their computer, or they can even ask not to be disturbed. The awareness capabilities of Sametime help make spur-of-the-moment, online conversations as natural, convenient, and worth-while as a hallway chat. And, in situations where text chat may not be enough, Sametime's audio and video support allows a much more personal and productive tool to complement a typical text chat.

Sametime makes users aware of opportunities for online interaction via a sophisticated buddy list, used to identify which members of a community are online and whether they are available to interact. Sametime can obtain the identities of users directly from the enterprise directory (such as the Domino Directory) or from its own integrated directory.

Sametime can also provide awareness and a secure communication channel to customers and business partners outside the firewall through integration with America Online's Instant Messenger (AIM) service. With the Sametime Connect client, users can exchange instant messages with any AIM user. (Administrators determine whether this Sametime capability is enabled.) Sametime even enables users to replace obscure AOL names with more meaningful "nicknames." Figure 5 shows a buddy list with AIM members.



Figure 5: A Sametime Connect Client

Once users are aware of who is online, they can initiate interaction simply by sending an instant message. A user might start an instant message, an online meeting, a telephone call—whatever suits the task at hand. For example, an instant message is an efficient, low-bandwidth medium for the quick clarification of an idea; but to explain the details of a design specification, a phone call may be a more appropriate medium.

Of course, nobody wants to be available for spontaneous communication—read "interruption"—all the time. For this reason, Sametime gives each user full control over their availability. Levels of participation include Active (online and available), Away (offline or otherwise unavailable) and Do Not Disturb (online but unavailable).

Sametime Integration Services

In addition to conferencing and secure instant messaging, Sametime offers developers a comprehensive set of Java-based tools, components, and APIs to integrate real-time collaboration capabilities with other applications. These tools include a full set of applets and component services for awareness, real-time chat, instant messaging, shared whiteboards and screen sharing.

You do not need Lotus Notes or Domino to get the full functionality of Sametime, but if you do have a Domino environment, Sametime includes pre-enabled Domino templates to add awareness and instant messaging capabilities to Domino-based mail databases, discussion databases, and document libraries. In a Sametime-enabled mail inbox, for example, the e-mail user can determine if the author or recipients of a new message are currently online and can instantly communicate with them via chat or an online meeting. In a Sametime-enabled discussion database, participants can determine who is reading or contributing content and start a chat or online meeting if desired.

You can also customize the appearance of the Sametime Meeting Center itself. Figure 5 above is an example.

Sametime Features

Sametime is the first real-time collaboration platform that meets e-business requirements for security, manageability, and scalability. To simplify deployment and maintenance, Sametime offers a standards-based architecture and support for a wide range of clients and protocols. Sametime is also highly extensible and configurable, enabling customers to leverage a real-time collaborative infrastructure to add value to other e-business Web applications.

The Sametime architecture

Sametime can be deployed as a standalone network or integrated with an existing messaging infrastructure such as Lotus Domino or Microsoft Exchange. Sametime includes these components:

- A Sametime Server: Supports Conferencing Services, Secure Instant Messaging Services, or both
- The Sametime Connect client: An optional Windows 32-based client that allows users to immediately participate in and take advantage of the awareness, instant messaging, and multiparty chat capabilities of Sametime

• **The Sametime Toolkit**: Helps you add componentized real-time functionality to Web and other e-business applications

The Sametime Server runs on Windows NT. Sametime Connect runs on Windows 95/98 and Windows NT Workstations.

To ease integration with existing network infrastructures, Sametime supports all applicable standards, such as the International Telecommunication Union (ITU) T.120 standard for data conferencing and object sharing. Future releases will support the emerging H.323 standard for audio/video transmission. Lotus is an active member of the Internet Engineering Task Force (IETF), where we are working with companies like Microsoft to define and encourage the Instant Messaging and Presence Protocol (IMPP).

Sametime client support

To simplify its deployment to end users and to eliminate barriers to real-time interaction both within and outside the business, Sametime supports a wide range of popular desktop clients, including:

- Web browsers, which can access all Sametime features.
- The Sametime Connect client, which can access Sametime's awareness, instant messaging,, and real-time chat features. If your company uses Conferencing Services, you can also launch into full collaborative meetings from the Connect client.
- **The Sametime Java Connect client,** which has the same features of the Connect Client but is entirely Java-based.
- Any T.120 compatible client, such as the Microsoft NetMeeting client, which can access Sametime's application sharing and shared whiteboard services.

Figure 6 shows the Sametime functional capabilities that each client type can access.



Figure 6: Sametime client capabilities

Sametime security and privacy

Sametime offers an exceptional range of security and privacy options for both conferencing and secure instant messaging. For example:

- Each user can specify who can or cannot see when he or she is online.
- Users can specify "Do Not Disturb" to indicate that they are online but not currently available.
- Sametime Conferencing Services uses 128-bit encryption for all audio, video, and data sharing features.
- Sametime Secure Instant Messaging text messages are secured by 40-bit encryption.
- All participants are authenticated via the corporate directory or Sametime directory using 128-bit encryption.
- Participants can password-protect and/or "hide" online meetings so only invitees can attend.
- Sametime servers can be password protected so that only authorized users can access the server.

To promote easy yet secure access to its capabilities, Sametime also provides a wide range of proxy support, including HTTP tunneling, HTTPS, SOCKS4, and SOCKS5. By placing a Sametime proxy server outside the firewall, external participants can attend a meeting without obtaining access to the LAN.

Sametime network management

The Sametime architecture is designed to be highly manageable and to integrate closely with a Notes/Domino environment, if desired.

For example, administrators can use familiar Domino tools to monitor the Sametime server via capabilities like server logging, real-time monitoring of server utilization, and the ability to broadcast Sametime messages.

Another important factor in manageability is scalability. The Sametime Server is highly scalable and delivers outstanding performance. Sametime can readily support up to tens of thousands of users in awareness mode, and up to several hundred users within a single shared whiteboard or program-sharing session.

Using Sametime with NetMeeting

Through its implementation of the T.120 online conferencing standard, the Sametime Server can host virtual meetings for any T.120 application, including Microsoft NetMeeting. In short, Sametime can act as a server backbone for hosting NetMeeting conferences, as illustrated in Figure 7.



Figure 7: Hosting conferences on the Sametime Server

Integrating Real-time and Asynchronous Collaboration

The business benefits of real-time collaboration are maximized in combination with asynchronous collaboration technologies like messaging and groupware/intranets. Together, these technologies provide a range of capabilities that is more comprehensive and more natural to use than either used alone.

In an environment that integrates both asynchronous and real-time communication tools, users can move from one mode of interaction to another more conveniently. After all, everyone chooses different modes of collaboration throughout the work day: sending an e-mail, answering a phone call, conversing at the copier, attending a meeting, taping a sticky note to someone's computer screen—whatever works. Using the Web to communicate in real-time can enhance these interactions. For example:

- A user receives an e-mail, sees that the sender is online, and sends an instant message to request a follow-up conversation.
- A user sends an e-mail to several recipients. Shortly thereafter, she is invited to join two of the recipients in a three-way text or audio/video chat regarding the message.
- A user reads a document of interest on the intranet and finds that the author is online. An instant message leads to a brief online meeting where the document is discussed in real-time via a shared whiteboard.
- Team members schedule an online conference to review a proposal. The revised proposal is then sent via e-mail directly to a senior manager for approval.
- A sales team has a product training session online. The initiator saves the session and posts it to the team's discussion database for colleagues who could not attend. Later, a salesperson who missed the meeting replays the content and then phones the initiator to share some concerns.

The point of real-time collaboration, of course, is not to give people more ways to communicate, but to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their existing communications habits. Real-time tools complement e-mail and other communication mediums by helping individuals connect more conveniently. The result is real business benefits: faster cycle times, greater responsiveness to customers, reduced costs.

Sametime/Domino Integration

While Sametime can be integrated with messaging-only environments like Microsoft Exchange, it has much more to offer as part of the Domino e-business infrastructure.

For example, a Sametime server can run on the same system as a Domino server to simplify pilot programs and support smaller deployments. Sametime can directly use Domino directory and security services. Sametime works seamlessly with the Lotus Notes client.

Sametime also provides ready-made, real-time enabled e-mail, document libraries, and discussion databases that customers can put to work today in their Domino applications. And Sametime's developer tools are designed to help Domino customers leverage their existing expertise to build real-time capabilities into Domino e-business solutions.

Sametime and Knowledge Management

The ability to collaborate in real-time is essential to a company's knowledge management strategy as instant access to experts and their intellectual capital improves efficiency and responsiveness. The decision-making process can be accelerated by allowing your knowledge workers the ability to communicate instantly and from any location. Outside your corporate firewall, Sametime makes knowledge sharing between your customers, partners, and suppliers much simpler because all you need to collaborate is Web access and a browser.

Sametime-Enabled Solutions

When real-time collaboration is made available to a group of people with common goals and interests, a vital community of users is frequently quick to develop. Capabilities like "who's online?" pop-ups, chats among multiple users, instant messaging, and a shared whiteboard can add value to almost any application that is simultaneously shared by multiple users.

For distributed teams, that added value can take the form of better coordination and more productive interactions, leading to decreased cycle times and faster decisions. For e-commerce applications, real-time capabilities can enhance the customer's experience, help increase sales volume, and build customer loyalty.

This section briefly illustrates some high-value ways to enhance widely used applications with real-time collaborative services. Any or all of these solutions can be created using built-in services available in Sametime today.

Help Desk

At the Help Desk, real-time collaboration can mean better service, delivered faster and at lower cost. With Sametime capabilities, an intranet user can contact a technical support representative live, via a Web browser, and directly share the application in question. The technical support representative can even correct the problem remotely on the user's computer.

Likewise, a customer service desk on the Web could allow users to "click here to chat with a representative." The result is likely to be increased customer satisfaction and better customer retention.

E-commerce

At consumer e-commerce sites, live chat capabilities can boost revenue per hit by increasing the likelihood that visitors will make a purchase. Site visitors can use live chat to find what they want more quickly. Sales representatives can use it to answer questions, ensure the transaction succeeds, and sell more merchandise.

On business-to-business e-commerce sites, awareness and real-time messaging capabilities can form the basis for specialized support services that facilitate a faster sales cycle and improve customer loyalty through better service.

Project Management

Real-time collaborative capabilities simplify project management among distributed teams by enhancing informal communication among team members. Conference calls can include richer visual content. For example, a dispersed engineering team can use a shared whiteboard to review CAD drawings and make changes in real-time, leading to reduced time to market.

Almost any application can benefit from realtime capabilities, and Lotus Sametime makes it easy to create killer real-time applications.

Virtual Seminars

Audio conferences are commonplace today. But think how much more valuable they would be if participants could see what the presenter is talking about. For example, a product manager could host a new product announcement where he could walk the field sales force through a presentation and product demo.

Real-time collaboration enhances the possibilities for any form of remote, ad hoc briefing. A financial manager can present ideas online, turning anonymous phone calls into interactive sessions with customers. Many messages are easier to get across with pictures in addition to words.

Conclusion

Inside the firewall, Web-based, real-time collaboration will become as pervasive as e-mail and will become a mode of communication as common and as necessary as the telephony system. In fact, collaborating in real time over IP will soon be as natural as picking up the telephone—and a lot more useful in some cases. Instant access to intellectual capital will become a competitive differentiator in many industries as employees that are geographically dispersed no longer feel the pains of being "out of the loop."

Real-time technologies like Sametime will grow to add significant value outside the firewall as well. Companies will soon come to rely on Web-based, real-time collaboration to do business with their customers, partners, and suppliers, and people will come to expect real-time help in almost any e-commerce related venture. Lotus Sametime is the clear market leader in business-ready, real-time collaboration. Millions of users are finding real and immediate business value in the ability to:

- Provide improved customer support at reduced costs
- Facilitate communication between your company and your customers, partners, and suppliers
- Reduce travel costs and have more efficient and cost-effective meetings
- Have instant access to your organization's intellectual capital

Thousands of companies rely on Sametime to do business. As the undisputed leader in collaboration, Lotus has a clear understanding of how technology can improve business processes, allow closer relationships with your customers, and make knowledge management a reality in your organization.



An IBM Company

© Copyright 2001 Lotus Development Corporation. All rights reserved.

Not for reproduction or other use without express written consent of Lotus Development Corporation.

Part No. CC7MANA

SUPERHUMANSOFTWARE

www.lotus.com